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1. Name of Property

historic name  Mallon Building
other names/site number

2. Location

street & number 102 East Montgomery Street
city or town  Francesville

N/A O not for publication

N/A 0O vicinity

state  Indiana code IN  county Pulaski code 131 zip code 47946

3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended, | hereby certify that this @ nomination
[0 request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of
Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36CFR Part 60. In my opinion, the property
R meets [0 does not meet the National Register criteria. 1 recommend that this property be considered significant

O nationally [J statewi ocally. (0 See continuation sheet for additional comments.)

S A /5 e

Signature of c?fying off di/T itle Daté

Indiana Depgrtment of Natural Resources
State or Federal agehcy and bureau

In my opinion, the p[operty O meets [0 does not meet the National Register criteria. ( (] See continuation sheet for additional
comments.)

Signature of certirying official/Title Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

4. National Park Service Certification 7/

1 hereby certify that the property is:
O entered in the National Register.
O See continuation sheet.
] determined eligible for the
National Register

Date of Action

4179

[ See continuation sheet.

{7 determined not eligible for the
National Register

0O removed from the National Register
O other, (explain:)
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Name of Property County and State
5. Classification
Ownership of Pro;_ierty Category of Property Number of Resources within Property
(Check as many bOXES:BS apply)  (Check only one box) (Do not include previously listed resources in the count
Miprivate *% " " building Contributing  Noncontributing
" 1 public- [ distri
{ | public-local I i district .
| | public-State .., . L Isite : o..L..... 0  _  buidngs
| |public-Federal ~ "--w.._ | |structure 0 0 sites
| ] object 0 ] 0 structures
0 0 objects
1 0 Total
Name of related multiple property listing !slumber of contribu.ting resources previously listed
(Enter "N/A" if property is not part of a multiple property listing.) in the National ReQISter
N/A 0
6. Function or Use
Historic Functions Current Functions
(Enter categories from-instructions) . (Enter categories from instructions)
__ COMMERCE/TRADE: _ ___ Department Store = COMMERCE/TRADE: Business
7. Description
Architectural Classification Materials
(Enter categories from instructions) (Enter categoriqs from instructions)
. 19th & 20th ¢ - Commercial _ . ~
-AMER.: Style foundation  __ STONE: Sandstone .
walls : BRICK
) - - METAL: Iron
,,,, . roof ASPHALT
other GLASS

Narrative Description
(Describe the historic and current condition of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)
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Name of Property County and State
8. Statement of Significance
Applicable National Register Criteria Areas of Signific
(I\sz "x" in one or more boxegfor the criteria qualifying the property (Enter categor%s fmma i’,‘,;?ucﬁons)
for National Register listing.)

ARCHITECTURE

[JA Property is associated with events that have made

a significant contriibution to the broad patterns of

our history.

B Property is associated with the lives of persons

significant in our past.

X|¢c Property embodies the distinctive characteristics

of a type, period, or method of construction or

represents the work of a master, or possesses
high artistic values, or represents a significant

and distinguishable entity whose components Period of Significance
lack individual distinction. 1899-1948

[]p Property has yielded, oris likely to yield,

information important in prehistory or history.

Significant Dates
Criteria Considerations

(Mark "x" in all the boxes that apply.) 1899

Property is:
[JA owned by a religious institution or used for

religious purposes. Significant Person

. . . (Complete if Criterion B is marked above)

[ 1B removed from its original location. N/A
[Jc abirthplace or grave. Cultural Affiliation
[JD acemetery. N/A

[ JE areconstructed building, object, or structure.

[(JF  acommemorative property.

G less than 50 years of age or achieved significance
within the past 50 years. Architect/Builder

Skinner, G.A

Narrative Statement of Significance
(Explain the significance of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)

9. Major Bibliographic References

Bibliography

(Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets.)

Previous documentation on file (NPS): Primary location of additional data:

L] <greliminary determination of individual listing (36 X State Historic Preservation Office
FR 67) has been requested

(] previously listed in the National Register [_] Other State agency

[_] previously determined eligible by the National (] Federal agency

Register

["] designated a National Historic Landmark [] Local government

Universi
[l recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey [J University

* o X Other
[ recorded by Historic American Engineering

Record # Name of repository:

Salem Township Public Library
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10. Geographical Data

Acreageof Property __ lessthanone

UTM References
(Place additional UTM references on a continuation sheet.)

(2]

1 16| [sloglro] [4536920]
one Easting Northing

2 | (Ll bty

Verbal Boundary Description o
(Describe the boundaries of the property on a continuation sheet.)

L Ll ]
Zone Eastlng Nol ing

L L NEN

[J See continuation sheet

E-N

Boundary Justification
(Explain why the boundaries were selected on a continuation sheet.)

11. Form Prepared By

nameftitte Chrisann Gutwein

organization Gutwein Agency date 12/18/98
street & number 102 East Montgomery Street telephone 219-567-9177

city ortown  Francisville state IN zipcode 47946

Additional Documentation

Submit the following items with the completed form:
Continuation Sheets

Maps
A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property's location. ,
A Sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources.
Photographs
Representative black and white photographs of the property.
Additional items
(Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items)
Property Owner

(Complete this Item at the request of SHPO or FPO.)

name Edison Gutwein

street & number 125 Circle Drive telephone  219-567-9291

city ortown  Francesville state IN Zipcode 47946

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information is being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic Places to nominate
properties for listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties and to amend existing listings. Response to this request is required to obtain
a benefit in accordance with the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470 et seq.).

Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 18.1 hours per response including time for reviewing
Instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect
of this form to the Chief, Administrative Services Division, National Park Service, P.O. Box 37127, Washington, DC 20013-7127; and the Office of
Management and Budget, Paperwork Reductions Projects (1024-0018), Washington, DC 20503.
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Narrative Description

The Mallon Building in Francesville, Pulaski County, Indiana is a two-story Commercial Style
structure. The property was erected in 1899 by local businessman J.H. Mallon to house his dry goods
business, replacing an earlier building which burned in 1893. Since its construction, the Mallon
Building has been the center of Francesville’s commercial area.

The Mallon Building is rectangular in plan with a small lean-to section off the rear of the main mass.
This 80 feet by 40 feet structure is of common bond brick construction and rests upon a brick
foundation. The exterior and interior walls are each brick and four inches thick, separated by four
inches of air space. The building is two stories in height with a flat roof. Located on the corner of East
Montgomery and North Bill Streets, the Mallon Building is the most imposing structure within the
local business district. Both the south (main) facade and the west facade offer storefronts.

The front elevation features a full length, two-part storefront on the ground floor (photo 1). Two
window groupings, one over each part of the storefront and each containing three one-over-one,
double-hung windows, make up the second floor of the main facade. The right (east) portion of the
ground floor storefront consists of two display windows on either side of the recessed entryway. The
entrance door is directly flanked by two angled windows which line the entrance recession. Window
panels, several inches in width, run along the bottom of each window. The doorway is single glazed
with full light window atop a single panel. Above the door is a multi-lighted transom. The doorway
also contains a wood frame screened door. The transom above the display windows is composed of a
leaded glass window with a stained glass design. An engaged iron post with some decorative molding
divides the two halves of the ground floor storefront.

The left (west) division of the ground floor storefront also features a recessed entrance. This corner
entrance is flanked by full length, angled windows atop single panels. The door is single glazed with
full light window and a single panel. The transom window is one over one. The large display
window east of the entryway rests on double panels and is topped by a leaded glass with stained glass
detail window. Smaller windows of this type also top each of the windows flanking the doorway and
the transom of the doorway. An iron post stands at the corner of the building a few feet directly in

front of the corner entryway.

The entire storefront rests upon a slab of limestone, elevating it several inches above sidewalk level.
The entire storefront is also topped with an iron frieze featuring ten pairs of rosettes. Above the frieze
is a band of brick layered in a dentil design. At the corners, between the brick and iron frieze, the
brick corbels outward make up the lower portion of corner turrets (present at all four corners of the
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building).

All six second story windows on the front elevation are one-over-one, double hung. Each opening has
a flat with plain lintel and sill made of limestone. Stringcourses of different pattern enrich the upper
third of the facade. The lowest is a double band above which is a wide, corbeled dentil course.
Another stepped stringcourse frames a broad panel that in turn is topped by a string of brick dentils.

The upper-level brick detailing on the main facade continues along that part of the west elevation
(photo 2). The west elevation is five bays wide, each bay consisting of a single, one-over-one, double-
hung window. Like those on the front facade, these second story windows have flat openings with
plain limestone lintels and sills. The first floor features single pane, fixed sash windows with plain
limestone lintels and sills under the southern most three bays. Under the other two bays is a side
storefront.

The side storefront, like the one at the front of the structure, sits elevated upon a limestone slab. This
storefront is framed by a band of dentil crenellated brick above and a brick buttress beside. An iron
frieze with five pairs of rosettes runs along the upper portion of the storefront (below the string of
angled brick). The northern most quarter of the side storefront is a double glazed door with double
panels at the base of each part of the door. A multi-lighted transom is topped by two full light
windows. This door is flush with the building and opens into a stairwell to the second floor. A spiral
iron post stands between the door and the other three-fourths of the side storefront. This southern
three-quarters of the storefront consists of a recessed double glazed door with single panels flanked by
a single full light window and a double full light window on each side. The double windows are flush
with the building while the two singles stand at an angle to the street, connecting the doorway with
the outer, double windows. The windows and the door all stand on single panels and are topped with
full light transoms below full light windows.

The small lean-to section at the rear of the Mallon Building, added at a later date, stands just to the
north of the side storefront. The lean-to has a single flush door with a limestone step. To the left and
right of the door is a flat, single pane, fixed sash window with limestone sill. The openings for the
windows and the door are segmentally arched and topped with arched brick headers.

The interior of the Mallon Building is essentially two open floors above a basement. Interior brick
walls are covered with lath and plaster. The original wood floors are in very good condition
throughout the building, with the exception of the area around the side entrance where coal was
brought inside for upstairs and downstairs stoves. Windows are framed with 5 2" wide wood trim.
Hanging pipes used for gas lighting are still present, though wiring was later installed for electrical
lighting.
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Dividing the ground floor down the middle are five round iron supports (photo 4). These supports
lead up to a 14' high ceiling. The ceiling of the Mallon Building is a very ornate pressed metal ceiling
(photo 3). The stairway to the second floor is found through an entryway located toward to the back
of the building. The 4' 3" wide staircase leads to an open second floor. Like the first floor, the walls
are covered in lath and plaster and two openings remain from pot bellied stoves along the west wall.
Solid square roof supports are 15' high. A dropped ceiling has recently been installed on the second
floor.

A 15' x 20' basement, which includes an outside coal door and coal chute, and the rear addition,
containing a rest room and furnace area, makes up the remainder of the Mallon Building.

Narrative Statement of Significance

The town of Francesville was laid out by James Brook of New Albany. Brook, later the president of
the Louisville, New Albany, & Corydon Railroad, named the town in honor of his daughter Frances.
Most of the earliest settlers were Pennsylvania Dutch. The western part of Pulaski County, with its
cheap land and rich soil, drew many more settlers to the area. As late as the 1870s, there was a strong
demand for housing. “Had we twelve vacant dwelling houses in this place at present they would be
taken in less than ten hours after being announced” reported the Local Topic in 1871.

As a railroad town, Francesville was assured of a stable source for commerce and prosperity. Nearby
farms produced a variety of grain products which were shipped to major markets through the town’s
grain center. By 1900, the town was considered the best grain center of its size between Michigan
City and Lafayette. Today, a century later, the town continues to be a major shipping center for grain
products.

Commercial activity in Francesville has always been centered on the railroad and the grain elevators
which stand beside it. In the center of town, a small commercial area grew up to handle the needs of
the farmers, railroad workers, and residents. The first store in Francesville was constructed by Alonzo
Star in 1853. By 1875, the town’s commercial district had grown to include a variety of other
businesses including groceries, harness makers, liveries, cabinetmakers, and confectioners. One of
these merchants was J.H. Mallon, who began keeping store in the “Bee Hive” building in 1869.

Mallon’s first store sold “dry goods”- a 19th century term which encompassed everything from pins
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and nails to fine hats and silk dresses. Business was good for Mallon, and in 1872 he purchased a
$300 lot from Payton Davidson for a new store. The new store was completed that year, and Mallon
moved in for business on December 19th. There he remained until October 9, 1893, when his store
and the drug store next to it burned.

Francesville’s commercial district had grown quite a bit since 1872, and the area around Mallon’s
building was crowded with other frame structures. The raging fire, fueled by the goods in Mallon’s
store and the volatile contents of the neighboring drug store, threatened to burn the entire block. It
was the largest fire in Francesville’s history. It was only by the heroic efforts of the townsmen that
many of the surrounding buildings were saved. After the fire, Mallon put what goods he could
salvage from his ruined store into a neighboring building. For the next six years he operated out of a
business room on Bill Street.

The fire spurred a new period of development in Francesville. Many merchants replaced their frame
buildings with substantial new “fire-proof” brick structures. For example, when the “Old Andrew”
hotel (1853) burned down in 1893, it was re-built as a large brick building. Civic pride also resulted
in new developments. The town had grown almost a half mile from its center in almost every
direction. Under the guidance of local government, streets were paved with gravel, sidewalks were
laid, and roads were built. Local business also prospered; when the town’s grain elevator burnt down
in 1899 it was quickly replaced. Two tile factories added an industrial edge to the town’s traditional
agricultural economy.

All of this prosperity and development is best reflected in the current Mallon Building, which was
built in 1899. Mallon, by this time considered the town’s leading merchant, constructed a substantial
two-story building which became the center of the town’s business district. There he continued to run
his business until selling the property in 1948. The building remained a department store for another
44 years under the ownership of a Mr. Minkert. Today the Mallon Building remains the heart of the
town’s commercial area and stands as the largest and finest commercial building extant in
Francesville. It represents the boom period of the town, when agricultural prosperity led to the
construction of many fine commercial structures. The Mallon Building retains many of its original
features, and was recently restored. Its significance to local history as a fine representative of
Commercial Style architecture during Francesville’s boom period warrants the Mallon Building’s
listing in the National Register of Historic Places.



m“'“ 10-9008 OMB Approvel No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number 9,10 Page __ 5 Mallon Building
Pulaski County, Indiana
Bibliography
Bechdolt, ).V. Hi f Fr vill munity. Francesville, IN: Francesville Lions Club,
1966. _

Francesville Tribune: 13 March 1902; 20 March 1902; 8 January 1903; 15 January 1903; 19 March
1903; 2 September 1903; 17 January 1904.

Verbal Boundary Description
The Mallon Building is located on the area 40 feet uniform in width of the entire west end of Lot 7 in

Block 9 and 40 feet uniform in width of the entire west end of Lot 8 in Block 9 of the original plat of
the town of Francesville.

Boundary Justification

This is the historic boundary of the Mallon Building.



